California Department of Conservation Solicitation Notice and Application for: 2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Program Grants

PUBLIC RELEASE

June 15, 2020



Contacts

For questions about this solicitation, please contact the Department by email at wcp@conservation.ca.gov.



Conventional sprinkler irrigation at Leafy Greens, operated by farmer Tom Heess, in the Salinas Valley of California on Thursday, June 16, 2011. Leafy Greens grows row crops of lettuce, broccoli, cauliflower sweet peas and seed beans. He uses rotational crop plantings to control weeds and plant disease. When a plot of land is at rest, he plants a cover crop of barley and rye grass because the roots hold the topsoil reducing erosion of the soil. He is converting his irrigation system from conventional sprinklers (seen) to micro irrigation. Where one system produces runoff and erosion of the soil (seen in foreground); the other has little or no erosion, less maintenance, easy harvest and less water is needed. When seasonal rains produce runoff, the silt that flows with it is caught in sediment ponds (left and right of pathway). The ponds have grass, bushes and trees to hold the structure and allow the silt to settle. Spillways lead to holding ponds and eventually the Salinas River, a tributary of the Monterey Bay National Marine Sanctuary. So far, because of its design and efficiency, no water has made it to the river. Photo by U.S. Department of Agriculture.

Table of Contents

At-A-Glance	1
Section 1: Introduction and Program Summary	1
 Background Funding Availability Goals and Objectives Section 2: Eligible Applicants and Project Types 	
Eligible Applicants Partnering and Cooperation	
Eligible Projects Minimum Eligibility Requirements	
Watershed Location	3
Project Types	3
Eligible Activities	3
3. Eligible Costs	
Direct Costs	4
4. Ineligible Costs	
Section 4: Application, Selection, and Award	7
 Application Materials and Submission Application Review Process Eligibility Criteria Selection Criteria Grant Awards and Execution Project Selection 	
Section 5: Grant Approval and Implementation	11
 Grant Awards Grant Agreements Responsibility of the Grantee Invoicing and Reimbursement Reimbursement 	11 11 11
5. State Audits	
6. Accounting Requirements Section 6: General Requirements	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Confidentiality Conflict of Interest	

3.	Compliance with Laws	13
4.	Environmental Compliance	13
Appe	endix A: Environmental Compliance	14
Appe	endix B: Application	16
1.	Cover Sheet	17
2.	Executive Summary (1/2-page maximum)	18
3.	Applicant Eligibility and Capacity	18
ļ	Eligibility	18
(Capacity	18
4.	Application Questions (5-page maximum)	19
5.	Work Plan	22
6.	Budget	23
7.	Project Map(s)	24
8.	CEQA Documentation	24
9.	Authorizing Resolution from Governing Body	
10		
11.	·	
App	endix C: Grant Agreement Template	27
Exhib	oit A: Scope of Work	27
1.	2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Prog	ram
Ва	ackground	
2.	The Project is Defined by the Application and Award Letter	
3.	Authorized Signers	
4.	Project Representatives	
5.	Grantee Responsibilities	
6.	Document Submission	
7.	Reporting Requirements	
Attac	chment 1: Project Location Maps	30
[inse	rt maps here]	30
Atta	chment 2: Authorized Signatory Form	31
Atta	chment 3: Work Plan	32
Atta	chment 4: Final Report	33
Exhib	oit B: Budget Detail and Reimbursement Provisions	34
1.	Reimbursement	
2.	How to Submit Invoices	34
3.	Invoice Dispute	
4.	Budget Contingency Clause	
5.	Cost Principles	35

6. Travel Reimbursement	35
7. Budget Modifications	35
8. Amendments	
Attachment 5: Budget Detail Worksheet	37
Attachment 6: Invoice	38
Exhibit C: General Terms and Conditions	40
1. Approval	40
2. Amendment	
3. Assignment	40
4. Records Retention	40
5. Audit	40
6. Indemnification	
7. Disputes	
8. Independent Grantee	
9. Non-Discrimination Clause	
10. Timeliness	
11. Governing Law	
12. Unenforceable Provision	
Exhibit D: Special Terms and Conditions	43
1. Compliance with Laws and Regulations	43
2. Subcontractors	
3. No Third-Party Beneficiaries	
4. Dispute Resolution	
5. Termination	
6. Waiver of Rights	
7. Insurance Requirements	
8. Stop Work	
9. Publicity	
10. Drug-Free Workplace Certification	
11. Americans with Disabilities Act	
12. Air/Water Pollution Violation Certification	
Attachment 7: Invoice Dispute Notification Template	
Exhibit E: Award Letter	49
Exhibit F: Solicitation	50
Appendix D: List of SGMA High and Medium Priority Basins	51
Appendix E: Map of SGMA Priority Basins	54

2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program

At-A-Glance

Program

This solicitation specifies the eligibility and evaluation criteria, application process, grant award and grant administration processes for grants funded under this program for watershed coordinators to develop, update, and implement watershed improvement plans consistent with Proposition 50 water bond funding requirements and to support implementation of related groundwater sustainability plans developed pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.

Funding Source

This program is funded by the Water Security, Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002 (Proposition 50).

Critical Dates (proposed, subject to change)

Draft Solicitation released for comment—April 3, 2020

Close public comment period—April 30, 2020

Solicitation released—June 15, 2020

Public Workshop(s) to be held online (date(s) to be announced)

Applications due—September 15, 2020

Awards announced—November 15, 2020

Contact for Questions

Department of Conservation Division of Land Resource Protection Watershed Coordinator Grant Program Manager wcp@conservation.ca.gov (916) 324-0850

Section 1: Introduction and Program Summary

1. Background

The 2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program (Program) funds watershed coordinator positions to develop, update, and implement watershed improvement plans consistent with the CALFED Programmatic Record of Decision and Groundwater Sustainability Plans developed by local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). Watershed coordinators will facilitate watershed-scale collaborations, promote integrated watershed management efforts, and support local implementation activities focusing on areas significantly impacted by SGMA implementation.

This solicitation is designed to provide the information necessary for applicants to successfully complete a grant application.

2. Funding Availability

This program is funded by the Water Security, Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002 (Proposition 50). The Budget Act of 2019 (AB 74, Ch. 23, Stat. 2019) appropriated \$1.5 million to the Department for grants to fund watershed coordinator positions to develop, update, and implement watershed improvement plans consistent with the Department's earlier Proposition 50 Watershed Coordinator Grant Programs. The 2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program will implement this appropriation.

The maximum limit on the amount of each grant proposal is \$300,000. Proposals may request less than this maximum amount.

3. Goals and Objectives

The primary goal of the Program is to improve watershed areas and related groundwater sustainability by supporting local watershed and groundwater improvement efforts. To do this, the Program will fund watershed coordinator positions to facilitate watershed and groundwater improvement efforts in areas of the state most immediately impacted by the implementation of SGMA, with groundwater basins that are designated as high and medium priority.

The Program offers organizations a unique opportunity to implement watershed improvements and facilitate local SGMA implementation through a coordinated collaborative process. A major goal of this program is to foster collaboration and partnerships and applicants are therefore strongly encouraged to work cooperatively with other organizations to formulate comprehensive proposals.

The Program emphasizes that collaboration between diverse entities at the regional scale is critical to efficiently meet the state's goals and address variations in water management conditions throughout California.

Projects funded under this solicitation will be for watershed coordinators that:

- Develop, update, and implement watershed improvement plans consistent with related groundwater sustainability plans developed pursuant to SGMA and
- are within a watershed area containing at least one basin identified in Appendix D

Section 2: Eligible Applicants and Project Types

1. Eligible Applicants

Eligible applicants are: (1) special districts, including those with non-GSP alternative submittals; (2) nonprofit groups with 501(c) status; (3) local governments; (4) federally recognized California Native American tribes, (5) non-federally recognized California Native American tribes; and (6) Groundwater Sustainability Agencies.

Eligible applicants must be either: 1) locally-based, which are defined as those that maintain a local office and focus on issues within or proximal to the watershed area or community that is the focus of the application; or 2) non-local, where there are strong local partnerships between the applicant, the local GSA(s), and other important stakeholders.

Eligible applicants must have watershed-related goals as part of their current long-range or strategic plans.

Partnering and Cooperation

This grant program encourages partnering and cooperation within watershed areas. To ensure a wider distribution of grants, no more than one full-time coordinator position will be awarded per proposal. The position may be split between two part-time coordinator positions. Proposals should demonstrate multiple, committed partnerships and extensive cooperation with other agencies, organizations, or entities.

Partnering is defined as commitments by other organizations, government agencies, private citizens or volunteer groups to provide funds or in-kind services. Partnerships must be evidenced by letters of commitment and/or other signed documents, which explain the relationship and outline the partner's contributions.

Cooperation is defined as working with other organizations, government agencies, or groups to ensure that all entities work in agreement and are non-duplicative of each other's activities. Cooperation may be evidenced by letters of support, signed agreements, board resolutions, or other signed documents.

2. Eligible Projects

The Department's Watershed Program includes the following elements:

- Supporting local watershed activities. Monitoring and measuring watershed function.
 Obtaining funding for and implementing watershed restoration, maintenance, and conservation activities that support the goals and objectives of the program, including improved river functions.
- Facilitation, coordination, and assistance. Facilitation aimed at improving coordination and assistance between government agencies, other organizations, and local watershed groups. Facilitating linkages between upslope management activities and overall water balance.
- Developing watershed monitoring and assessment protocols. Facilitating monitoring efforts that are consistent with program protocols and support watershed activities that ensure that adaptive management processes can be applied.
- Supporting education and outreach. Supporting resource conservation education at the local watershed level and providing organizational and administrative support to watershed programs.

Minimum Eligibility Requirements

Minimum eligibility requirements for all projects funded under this solicitation can be found in Section 4.3.

Watershed Location

Eligible proposals are those that address a watershed area as defined by the applicant and comprised of one or more SGMA high- or medium-priority sub-basins. A list of eligible basins is provided in Appendix D. Each proposal may include activities on lands that are hydrologically connected to the groundwater basin(s) of the proposed watershed area.

Project Types

The following four project types are eligible for funding under this solicitation:

- Local watershed activities, monitoring and measuring watershed functions, obtaining funding for and implementing projects
- Coordination, facilitation, and assistance
- Watershed monitoring and assessment protocols
- Education and outreach

Proposals may be submitted for projects on public lands or for voluntary projects on private lands.

Eligible Activities

A. Local watershed activities:

This may include planning, pre-project design, engineering, and environmental
permitting for projects not funded with the watershed coordinator grant. Also, it may
include monitoring and measuring watershed functions, and may include obtaining
funding for and implementing watershed restoration, maintenance, and conservation
activities that support the goals and objectives of the program, including improved river
functions.

B. Coordination, facilitation, and assistance:

- Defining critical biophysical and social units for analysis and projects;
- Establishing or updating regional planning and project priorities for areas most in need of enhanced management to improve water resources and watershed conservation;
- Identifying and pursuing traditional and new sources of funding and public-private partnerships; and
- Accomplishing watershed-scale implementation of the actions proposed.

C. Watershed monitoring and assessment protocols:

• Facilitating monitoring efforts that are consistent with program protocols and support watershed activities that ensure that adaptive management processes can be applied.

D. Education and outreach

• Supporting resource conservation education at the local watershed level and providing organizational and administrative support to watershed programs.

3. Eligible Costs

Only eligible costs incurred during the grant agreement term that are related to the project will be reimbursed. All eligible costs must also be reasonable and supported by appropriate documentation to be reimbursed. All eligible costs must, to the satisfaction of the Department, support the work plan and be directly related to, and in support of, the watershed coordinator positions.

Reasonable

For an eligible cost to be considered reasonable, the cost, in its nature and amount, must not exceed that which would be incurred by a prudent person under the circumstances prevailing at the time the decision was made to incur the cost. In determining reasonableness of a given cost, consideration must be given to:

- Whether the cost is of a type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the operation of the entity or the proper and efficient performance of project.
- The restraints or requirements imposed by such factors as: sound business practices; arm's-length bargaining; federal, state, local, tribal, and other laws and regulations; and terms and conditions of this project.
- Market prices for comparable goods or services for the geographic area.
- Whether the individuals concerned acted with prudence in the circumstances considering their responsibilities to its employees, the public at large, and the state.
- Whether the cost significantly deviates from the acquiring entity's established practices and policies regarding the incurrence of costs.

Direct Costs

- 1. Salary for one full-time equivalent (FTE) watershed coordinator (employee or contractor) for a maximum of three years, including benefits. May be split between two part-time positions.
- 2. Consultant/Contractor services for project needs such as facilitation or technical services, including monitoring and measuring watershed functions.
- 3. Travel. Eligible travel costs can only be used for in-state travel for the watershed coordinator as necessary to complete coordination work. Mileage for watershed coordinator activities is reimbursable if included in the proposed budget and work plan. In addition to mileage for watershed coordinator activities, costs must meet the requirements outlined below and in the Grant Agreement:
 - Accommodation-related travel costs: maximum reimbursement rates based on county as shown at: http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-lodging-reimbursement.aspx, with no option for approval of an "excess lodging rate."
 - Rental car costs or personal vehicle mileage for travel directly related to the grant
 activities will be reimbursed at the relevant rental car or Reimbursement Rate Per Mile for
 Personal Vehicle as shown here: http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/Pages/travel-personal-vehicle.aspx.
 - Rental car, personal vehicle, ride share, train, or airfare costs will only be reimbursed for travel directly related to execution of the work plan, and then only if it is the typical method used to get from one location to the other. Grantees should choose the least expensive mode of transportation feasible given their travel needs.
 - No other travel-related costs will be reimbursed through this grant program.

4. Other direct costs such as:

- Required equipment, such as a personal computer (see Exhibit D: Special Terms and Conditions, item 13, Equipment Purchase)
- Technical or virtual meeting software or applications other than basic word processing programs
- Attendance at seminars, training workshops, and conferences supported by the work plan
- Minor meeting expenses, such as printing and mailing costs (excluding food and drinks), parking
- Office supplies

Administrative Costs

Administrative costs are limited to the applicant's federally negotiated indirect cost rate. If no federally negotiated indirect cost rate is available, administrative costs may account for no more than 25% of the total grant award and may include only those costs incurred by an organization to administer the grant, such as:

- Office supplies
- Rent for the watershed coordinator's office space (prorated per staff member)
- Administrative support for the watershed coordinator
- Operating expenses, such as copying, printing, and mailing costs, telephone service
- Legal or management oversight for the watershed coordinator
- Prorated general liability, Workers' Compensation (may be included in payroll), and automotive insurance
- Prorated auditing services required in normal course of business

4. Ineligible Costs

The purpose of this grant program is to fund watershed coordinator positions and support costs that are absolutely necessary for watershed coordinators to complete their duties as identified in the work plan. The grant cannot pay for coordinators to conduct activities normally associated with office manager or administrative staff positions.

Ineligible costs include:

- Costs associated with ineligible projects or activities or not related to the funded work plan;
- Costs that occur outside the Grant Agreement term
- Food or drinks
- Office equipment/supplies beyond those needed for the watershed coordinator activities included in the budget of the grant agreement
- Insurance not listed above
- Out-of-state travel and activities

Section 3: Project Priorities

SGMA requires local agencies in high and medium priority groundwater basins to establish groundwater management agencies (GSAs) to develop groundwater sustainability plans (GSPs). The GSPs must define and manage groundwater conditions such that groundwater basins are brought into balanced levels of pumping and recharge while avoiding undesirable results. Under SGMA, these basins should reach their locally defined sustainability goal within 20 years of implementing their GSPs. For critically over-drafted basins, that will be 2040. For the remaining high and medium priority basins, 2042 is the deadline.

The Department will prioritize projects that do the following:

- Supporting local watershed activities. Monitoring and measuring watershed functions.
 Obtaining funds for and implementing watershed restoration, maintenance, and conservation activities that support the goals and objectives of the program, including improved river functions and groundwater recruitment,
- Equity, environmental justice, and disadvantaged community benefits: Improvements to watershed areas and groundwater basins that benefit environmental justice and disadvantaged communities. Increased participation of and collaboration with disadvantaged communities,
- Facilitation, coordination and assistance. Facilitation aimed at improving coordination and assistance between government agencies, other organizations, and local watershed groups. Facilitating linkages between upslope management activities and overall water balance,
- Developing watershed monitoring and assessment protocols. Facilitating monitoring
 efforts that are consistent with program protocols and support watershed activities that
 ensure that adaptive management processes can be applied, and
- Supporting education and outreach. Supporting resource conservation education at the local watershed level and providing organizational and administrative support to watershed programs.

Section 4: Application, Selection, and Award

1. Application Materials and Submission

The application template is provided in <u>Appendix C</u> and is available on the <u>Department's</u> <u>website</u>. Applicants should familiarize themselves with this Solicitation prior to completing the application.

Applicants must submit all required application materials via email to wcp@conservation.ca.gov. Applications must be received digitally by 11:59 p.m. on September 15, 2020.

Incomplete applications, applications that don't meet all the eligibility criteria, and applications not received by the deadline will not be evaluated for funding.

Each applicant will receive an acknowledgement upon the Department's receipt of their application.

The schedule for this solicitation is provided in the "<u>At-A-Glance</u>" section of this solicitation. The schedule is subject to change.

Details, documents, and any other materials related to this program, such as applications, grant agreements, reports, expenditures, photos, are public records that may be publicly released in accordance with the California Public Records Act (Cal. Gov. Code §§ 6250 et seq.).

2. Application Review Process

Applications will be evaluated and scored by Department of Conservation and a review panel comprised of individuals with appropriate qualifications, collectively "reviewers." Mean scores will be calculated and ranked. The reviewers will convene to provide consensus for funding recommendations. However, as discussed more below, the final funding decision will be made by the Director of the Department.

3. Eligibility Criteria

Below are the Eligibility Criteria upon which each proposal will be evaluated. Applications must receive a 'yes' on all eligibility criteria to be considered for funding under this solicitation.

Eligibility Criteria	
Applicant is eligible if it:	Y/N
•is a (1) special district; (2) nonprofit group with 501(c) status; (3) local government; (4) federally recognized California Native American tribe, (5) nonfederally recognized California Native American tribe; or a (6) Groundwater Sustainability Agency.	Y/N
•is locally based or has strong, well-documented ties to local communities, stakeholders and/or GSA(s)	Y/N
has watershed-related goals as part of its current long-range or strategic plans	Y/N
Applicant has overall capacity to administer the grant and proposal.	Y/N
Application is for an eligible project type	Y/N
Application is for an eligible watershed area containing one or more GSAs	Y/N
Application evidences commitment to collaborate with governmental entities and diverse stakeholder groups	Y/N
Application will provide local assistance to identify, prioritize, and coordinate complimentary local watershed activities that engage land-based solutions in helping to meet the recommendations of the local SGMA groundwater sustainability plan(s)	Y/N
Application is complete and was received by the deadline	Y/N
CEQA compliance for the project, if required, has been completed	Y/N

4. Selection Criteria

After confirming that the application is eligible, reviewers will evaluate each proposal using the Selection Criteria outlined below.	Points
Program Priorities. The extent to which to proposal meets the priorities outlined in the Project Priorities section of the Solicitation. In evaluating this criterion, the Department may consider the extent to which a project addresses a single priority as well as the number of priorities addressed.	/30
Disadvantaged Community Benefits. The extent to which the proposal serves or benefits a disadvantaged community, including by increasing participation and collaboration, providing workforce education, training, contractor, and job opportunities to disadvantaged communities, or provides improved access to sources of safe drinking water. Projects that serve severely disadvantaged communities will receive more points.	/20
Benefits to the Watershed. The extent to which the application provides significant public benefits to the watershed. Public benefits may include increased water quantity, improved water quality, providing access to safe drinking water for underserved communities.	/20
Performance Measures. The extent to which the performance measures document performance of actions consistent with furtherance of the objectives of this program.	/10
 Work Plan. The extent to which the work plan activities are feasible and are: consistent with the goals and objectives of Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator program; support implementation of local Groundwater Sustainability Agency recommendations and plans promote local community involvement 	/10
Sustainability. The extent to which the application demonstrates benefits will be sustained after the life of the grant.	/5
Budget. The extent to which the proposed budget is appropriate for the work proposed, is cost effective, and is sufficiently detailed to describe project costs. The Department may consider the feasibility of completing the project within the proposed budget.	/5
Total proposal points/Total possible points	/100

5. Grant Awards and Execution

Project Selection

The projects and selection scoring will be presented to the Director of the Department who will consider the comments and recommendations of the reviewers and make the final funding decision. The Director of the Department will make the final determination as to which projects are approved for award. The Department will notify applicants within 10 days of the Director's determination as to whether their project was approved for funding.

Eligible projects will be presented to the Director in ranked order based on the amount of points received during the selection criteria evaluation. The Director may consider the following when making awards:

- Selection criteria ranking
- The extent to which projects meet the priorities outlined in the Project Priorities section of this solicitation
- The extent to which projects address the program priorities outlined in <u>Section 3</u> of the Solicitation
- The availability of funds
- The program purposes
- The balance and distribution of funding among program priorities, project types, and/or geographic area.

Section 5: Grant Approval and Implementation

1. Grant Awards

Grants will be awarded in accordance with the process set forth above. Successful applicants will work with an assigned Department grant manager to finalize their grant agreement.

2. Grant Agreements

All grantees will be required to enter into a grant agreement with the Department. Grantees work with an assigned grant manager to develop their grant agreement. Grant agreements will not be executed until authorized by the Department and will be effective upon execution by the Department's authorized signatory. The Department may require modifications to project in the grant agreement. All contents of this application will be included in the grant agreement.

3. Responsibility of the Grantee

The grantee will be responsible for carrying out the project and for managing finances, including invoicing; payments to contractors, subcontractors, and suppliers; accounting and financial auditing; and other project management duties such as monitoring and reporting requirements.

4. Invoicing and Reimbursement

Funds cannot be disbursed until there is a fully executed grant agreement. Expenses incurred prior to full execution of a grant agreement are not eligible for reimbursement.

Reimbursement

Grant agreements will be structured to provide for reimbursement in arrears of work performed. Invoices for reimbursement may be submitted quarterly or monthly. If determined allowable at a later date by the department and its control agencies, advance payment terms will be considered and negotiated on a case-by-case basis.

Loss of Funding

Actions of the grantee that may lead to suspension or cancellation of the grant agreement include, but are not limited to:

- Failure to execute an agreement within six months of receiving an official funding notification,
- Withdrawal from the grant program prior to completion of the work plan,
- Failure to submit required documentation within the time periods specified in the grant agreement,
- Change in project scope, schedule, or budget without prior approval,
- Failure to complete the project within the grant agreement term,
- Failure to demonstrate sufficient progress toward deliverables based on milestones

outlined in the work plan,

• Failure to comply with applicable laws or grant requirements.

5. State Audits

Projects are subject to audit by the state annually and for three (3) years following the final payment of grant funds. If the project is selected for audit, the grantee will be contacted in advance of the audit. The audit will include all books, papers, accounts, documents, or other records of grantee, as they relate to the project. All project expenditure documentation should be available for an audit, whether paid with grant funds or other funds.

The grantee must have project records, including source documents and evidence of payment, readily available and must provide an employee with knowledge of the project to assist the auditor. The grantee must provide a copy of any document, paper, record, or other such material requested by the auditor.

6. Accounting Requirements

Grantees must maintain an accounting system that:

- Accurately reflects fiscal transactions, in accordance with standard accounting principles,
- Provides a good audit trail, including original source documents such as purchase orders, receipts, progress payments, invoices, employee paystubs and timecards, evidence of payment, etc.,
- Provides accounting data so the total cost of each individual project can be readily determined, and,
- Maintains records for a period of three (3) years after final reimbursement is made by the state. Grantee must retain all project records at least one (1) year following an audit.

Section 6: General Requirements

1. Confidentiality

Once the application has been submitted, any privacy rights, as well as other confidentiality protections afforded by law with respect to the application package may be waived. All applications, communications, or other documentation received by Department are subject to the Public Records Act (Government Code § 6250, et seq.).

2. Conflict of Interest

All applicants and individuals who participate in the review of submitted applications are subject to applicable conflict of interest laws. Any individual who has participated in planning or setting priorities for a specific solicitation or who will participate in any part of the grant development and negotiation process on behalf of the public is ineligible to receive funds or personally benefit from funds awarded through this Solicitation. Applicants should also be aware that certain local agencies may submit applications that will compete for funding. Failure to comply with the conflict of interest laws, including business and financial disclosure provisions, will result in rejection of the application and any subsequent grant agreement being declared void. Other legal actions may also be taken.

3. Compliance with Laws

Activities funded under this Solicitation must be in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and applications may include in their budgets the funding necessary for compliance-related activities. As part of the application, applicants must identify expected required permits, state whether they have received the required permits or describe the process through which the permits will be obtained, and indicate which permits could significantly delay project implementation.

4. Environmental Compliance

Activities carried out under watershed coordinator grants are not intended to require CEQA. Projects carried out with separate funding will have separate environmental compliance requirements that must be met. Applicants must consider whether their proposed activities will trigger the need for an initial study, or whether a CEQA exemption applies. How CEQA applies and the status of CEQA compliance must be addressed in the grant application. Activities funded pursuant to this Solicitation must be in compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations, including the California Environmental Quality Act, National Environmental Policy Act and other environmental permitting requirements. Prevailing Wage.

Grants awarded consistent with this Solicitation may be subject to prevailing wage provisions of the California Labor Code commencing with section 1720. Any questions of interpretation regarding the California Labor Code should be directed to the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, the state department having jurisdiction in these matters. For more details, please refer to the Department of Industrial Relations website.

Appendix A: Environmental Compliance

The Department, as a government agency that will be taking a discretionary action to provide funding for projects, must comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Each proposed project must follow the California Environmental Quality Act, Division 13 (commencing with Public Resources Code section 21000) and California Code of Regulations Title 14 section 15000 et seq. ["CEQA"]).

For applications submitted by government entities, it is expected that the resolution adopted to submit the application will address CEQA and that the Department will act as a responsible agency. For applications submitted by non-profits or California Native American tribes, the Department will be acting either as a lead or responsible agency depending on what other CEQA documents have been completed for the proposed activities.

Watershed coordinator activities funded through these grants are not intended to be projects that trigger permitting and environmental compliance requirements, but applicants must address whether and how CEQA applies to their project. Projects carried out by watershed coordinators with separate funding will have separate environmental compliance requirements that must be met should be discussed in this application.

- a. Therefore, for the Department to review an application for a proposed project, one of the following must be submitted: A Finding or similar determination that the proposed project is not a project as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act, with an explanation as to why it is not a project, with the appropriate sections of the Public Resources Code and California Code of Regulations cited.
- b. The Notice of Exemption filed with the County Clerk and State Clearinghouse (as applicable) if the proposed project is categorically or statutorily exempt, with the appropriate Public Resources Code section citation to the exemption(s) being relied upon by the lead agency.
- c. The Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative Declaration adopted by the lead agency and Initial Study, including a copy of the Environmental Checklist Form located in Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines and the Notice of Determination filed with the County and with the State Clearinghouse. If the lead agency has adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration, the applicant must also provide the adopted mitigation monitoring and reporting program.
- d. The Final Environmental Impact Report certified and adopted by the lead agency with Initial Study, including a copy of the Environmental Checklist Form located in Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, the adopted mitigation monitoring and reporting program, and the Notice of Determination filed with the County and the State Clearinghouse. Please include any State Clearinghouse responses received by the applicant.
 - *For b and c, include documentation the State of California Department of Fish and Wildlife CEQA fee was paid or is not applicable.
- e. Projects that tier from a Programmatic, Master, or other Environmental Impact Report shall include a copy of any subsequent Initial Study for the proposed project together

with a copy of any supplementary environmental documentation adopted by the lead agency, including, if applicable, any required findings pursuant to Public Resources Code section 21157.1, subdivision (c), and the Notice of Determination, filed with the County Clerk and with the State Clearinghouse, as applicable.

Pursuant to section 75102 of the Public Resources Code, before the adoption of a Negative Declaration or Environmental Impact Report, the lead agency shall notify the proposed action to a California Native American tribe, which is on the contact list maintained by the Native American Heritage Commission, if that tribe has traditional lands located within the area of the proposed project.

Appendix B: Application

This is the application for 2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program. The Solicitation detail the background and requirements to apply for funding under the program.

Application instructions

- Each application must contain all of the materials listed in the checklist below.
- Materials should be presented in the order indicated on the checklist.
- Please complete all materials using an easy-to-read font, 11 point or larger.
- In the header or footer of each page of the application, applicants must include: (1) name of applicant and (2) sequential page numbers.
- Materials not specifically requested (e.g., press clippings or brochures) will not be considered during the evaluation.

1. Cover Sheet
2. Executive Summary
3. Applicant Capacity
4. Application Questions
5. Work Plan
6. Budget
7. Project Maps
8. CEQA Documentation
9. Authorizing Resolution from Governing Body
10. Partner Letters/Documents
11. Cooperator Letters/Documents

1. Cover Sheet

Project Information	
Project Title	
Location (County and City)	
Diatriat Novach and all	Senate:
District Number(s):	Assembly:
SGMA Sub-basin(s) (see Appendix D – List of SGMA High and Medium Priority Basins)	
Severely Disadvantaged Community	☐ Yes ☐ No
Project Funding	
Grant Request Amount	\$[XXX]
Total Estimated Project Cost	
Applicant Information	
Applicant Name	
Organization Type	[e.g., special district, local government, 501(c) non- profit organization, tribal entity.]
Federal Employer ID Number	
Mailing Address	
Contact Person	
Title	
Phone Number	
Email Address	

2. Executive Summary (1/2-page maximum)

This section will concisely summarize the purpose of the proposal, including how it relates to the SGMA. In addition, this section should list any participating local governments or other partners and include a brief description of the watershed area characteristics and demographics.

3. Applicant Eligibility and Capacity

Eligibility

Applicants must provide all the following to demonstrate eligibility:

Documentation showing that applicant falls under one of the following categories: (1) special districts; (2) nonprofit groups with 501(c) status; (3) local governments; (4) federally recognized California Native American tribes, (5) non-federally recognized California Native American tribes; or (6) Groundwater Sustainability Agencies.

Non-profit groups must provide copies of the most recent Federal form 990 and IRS 501(c) Tax Determination Letter.

- Evidence of strong working connection with local stakeholders or communities.
- Evidence that applicant focuses on issues within the Project's watershed area or community.
- Copy of the applicant's current long-range or strategic work plan having watershedrelated goals.

Capacity

Applicants must provide a short narrative description of their capacity to successfully implement the grant, should the project be funded. This description should address:

- How the applicant's board and/or management structure will contribute to the effective execution of project activities.
- Any professional staff within the applicant's employ who are qualified to develop and successfully implement the activities outlined in the proposal. The response should include a description of the skills and experience of such staff or, if the applicant does not possess such expertise, how the applicant will acquire this expertise.
- Any financial resources at the applicant's disposal to support the implementation of the grant.
- Any additional resources the applicant can draw on to ensure his/her success.
 Resources include, but are not limited to volunteers, physical capital, and existing partnerships.

Applicants must provide at least two of the following to demonstrate capacity:

- Evidence of previous experience successfully implementing grants similar in size and scope within the last three (3) years.
- A copy of the current annual organizational budget.
- A copy of the most recent financial audit (if an audit is not available, a copy of the organization's recent financial statements).

4. Application Questions (5-page maximum)

The questions below are designed to solicit specific facts about the proposal. Please respond to all questions in the order listed and clearly label each question and answer. Points will be attributed to each section and not to individual questions. If a question does not apply to your proposed work, indicate that it is not applicable ("N/A").

A. Program Priorities. Identify watershed goals from the state, other agencies, and watershed organizations, and explain how these goals will be supported by the proposal. Describe how the project will contribute towards existing published watershed, groundwater, or other water-related goals of the state or other entities. Proposals should illustrate a comprehensive understanding of existing issues and plans for the watershed area.

Project must be consistent with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Program and must:

- Be consistent with the priorities, goals and objectives of Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator program;
- Support implementation of local groundwater sustainability agency recommendations and plans
- Promote local community involvement.
 - a) Describe how the project's goals and objectives are community-based by explaining how it:
 - Promotes community and landowner involvement;
 - Has demonstrable community support;
 - Contributes to on-going local watershed management;
 - Fosters the development and maintenance of local watershed efforts;
 - Reaches out to and encourage participation of local leadership;
 - Reaches out to and encourage participation of individuals with diverse interests; and
 - Fosters collaboration among multiple interests.
 - b) Describe how the project addresses multiple watershed issues by explaining how it:
 - Addresses multiple ecosystem issues;
 - Is consistent with related resource protection activities and applicable regulations;
 - Contributes to beneficial environmental results;
 - Improves ecosystem values and watersheds that directly or indirectly impact the Bay-Delta system;
 - Is consistent with general principles of good watershed management.
 - c) Describe how the project is coordinated and supported at multiple levels by explaining how it:

- Enhances coordination between government agencies and local community groups.
- B. Disadvantaged Community Benefits. Explain how the project will serve disadvantaged communities (e.g., through increased collaboration, participation in watershed and groundwater project planning, provision of workforce education and training, contractor, and job opportunities for residents of disadvantaged communities). Describe the community served, and provide documentation supporting how the project serves that community. Describe any issues related to access to safe drinking water, and how the proposal will address access to safe drinking water. Documentation supporting how the project serves the community may include letters or emails of support from local community-based organizations and/or residents supporting the proposed project, public comments from meetings attended by local residents and/or community groups supporting the proposed project, or other documentation that demonstrates the proposed project addresses a community need
- C. Benefits to the Watershed. Proposals must describe all potential benefits to the watershed and related groundwater basin(s) and demonstrate the need for a coordinator position. Proposals that clearly explain and fully outline the following will receive more points.
 - a) Current watershed conditions and need for a watershed coordinator position.
 - b) Importance, impact, and direct benefits a coordinator would have on the watershed and related groundwater basin(s).
 - c) Strong correlation between the proposed activities of the watershed coordinator and watershed-related goals and objectives of the applicant's long-range or strategic plan.
 - d) Methods used to measure and evaluate the watershed coordinator's direct benefits to the watershed area and related groundwater basin(s).
- D. Performance Measures. Describe the quantifiable standards that will be used to measure the success of an activity and the activities' direct benefit to the watershed area. These quantifiable performance measures should be well-defined and will be incorporated into the work plan. Proposals that provide quantifiable performance measures that clearly demonstrate the proposal's benefit to the Program priorities, goals and objectives will be awarded more points.

Every work plan activity and sub-activity must include a performance measure. Performance measures are used to establish benchmarks that will allow applicants and grant administrators to evaluate the effectiveness of the coordinators' efforts. For example, if an objective is to slow and spread surface water runoff to the maximum extent practically feasible above and upslope of a groundwater basin, a performance measure may be to create a watershed management plan element to increase and restore textural diversity to the landscape throughout that basin.

Performance measures are generally reported as numbers, ratios, or percentages. They should show how actions will directly benefit the watershed area. A performance measure should not be a list of activity completions. Performance measures should go beyond counting numbers of meetings held, numbers of attendees, numbers of mailings. For example, if a set number of meetings will be held, what is the measurable outcome for those meeting? Will a memorandum of understanding that formalizes contributions to

- watershed improvement efforts be signed by stakeholders? Will a watershed management plan be created, updated, or implemented?
- E. Work Plan. Applicants must provide a detailed work plan that specifies the activities and sub-activities that will be performed during the grant term. The work plan will also include a schedule of target completion dates, performance measures, and a list of deliverables to be provided as proof of project completion. The schedule should be of sufficient detail to allow assessment of the progress through the work plan at regular intervals.
- F. Sustainability. Describe the potential to result in long-term sustainable benefits. Proposals with feasible methods or plans to sustain the watershed coordinator position and build upon the accomplishments of the work plan beyond the life of the grant will receive more points.
- G. Budget. Applicants must provide a budget broken down by cost type (line item). Cost estimates should be consistent with the work plan. All costs must be eligible.

5. Work Plan

Applicants must provide a detailed work plan that specifies the activities and sub-activities that will be performed during the grant term. The work plan will also include a schedule of target completion dates, performance measures, and a list of deliverables to be provided as proof of project completion. The schedule should be of sufficient detail to allow assessment of the progress through the work plan at regular intervals. Cost estimates should be consistent with the budget. If awarded funding, this work plan will be incorporated into the Grant Agreement.

2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Program

Applicant:		
Watershed Name:		
Project Goal:		
Objective:		
Performance Measure:		
Activity/Sub Activity Number	Activity Description	Beginning and End Date
<u>ivaniber</u>	Activity Description	<u>Date</u>
	(example) Watershed Management Plan	
1	Development/Update/Implementation	
1 a	(examples) LIDAR Mapping; stream gage installation; monitoring data collection	
2 a	(example) stakeholder meetings	

6. Budget

Applicants must provide a budget broken down by cost type (line item). Cost estimates should be consistent with the work plan. All costs must be eligible. The following BUDGET SUMMARY must include total costs for line item. The BUDGET DETAIL must include adequate detail for each line item. If awarded funding, this Budget will be incorporated into the Grant Agreement. Please refer to the <u>Department's website</u> for an excel version of this spreadsheet.

2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Program: BUDGET SUMMARY

	Hourly rate/unit	Number of	
Line Item	cost	hours	Total cost
Direct Costs			
Watershed			
Coordinator			
Technical Support			
Travel			
Supplies			
Equipment			
Software			
Other (specify)			
Subtotal			
Administrative Costs			
TOTAL			

2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Program: BUDGET DETAIL

	Hourly rate/ unit	Number of	
Line Items	cost	hours	Total Cost
Direct Costs			
Watershed Coordinator Salary			
and Benefits (s)			
(example) Coordinator 1			
(example) Coordinator 2			
Technical Support			
(example) GIS or LIDAR			
Travel			
Supplies			
Equipment			
Software			
Other (specify)			
Total			

7. Project Map(s)

The following maps must be included in the application:

- A location map (in PDF) that identifies the project relative to nearby cities and/or landmarks
- Additional maps that further describe or otherwise support the proposal may be included.

All maps must be of sufficient resolution to be legible if printed on an 8 $\frac{1}{2}$ " x 11" sheet of paper.

The applicant may submit geographic information system (GIS) data along with any maps.

8. CEQA Documentation

Applicants must provide proof that the lead agency has met the environmental compliance requirements outlined in Appendix A of the solicitation.

9. Authorizing Resolution from Governing Body

Applicants must submit a signed Resolution of Support adopted by the entity's governing body that evidences authority to submit the application and, if awarded funding, to enter into and perform under the terms of the Grant Agreement template (Appendix C).

The resolution must:

- Authorize the submittal of the grant application for a 2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program grant.
- Certify that the Applicant understands the assurances and certification in the application,
- Authorize entrance into a grant agreement with the Department for the project and accept the template terms and conditions, if the project is awarded funding.
- Authorize a designated individual to, as agent, accept the award of grant funding and to execute tasks, such as signing documents, related to the application, grant agreement, reimbursement requests, if the project is awarded funding.

10. Partner letters/documentation

Partners are defined as organizations, government agencies, private citizens or volunteer groups that provide funds or in-kind services. Proposals that demonstrate multiple, committed partnerships and extensive coordination with other agencies, organizations, or entities will be given more points. Partnerships must be evidenced by letters of commitment and/or other signed documents, which explain the relationship and outline the contributions. Do not submit general letters of support that do not specify financial contributions, as these will not increase the number of points awarded.

Provide copies of letters/documentation from partnering entity/entities within the project geographic area and from the local community stating their specific role in the development or implementation of the Watershed Coordinator Program.

11. Cooperator letters/documentation

Cooperation is defined as working with other organizations, government agencies, or groups to ensure that all entities work in agreement and are non-duplicative of each other's activities. Applicants are urged to work cooperatively with other groups and agencies to avoid multiple proposals for the same watershed areas. Applicants must demonstrate that their efforts are part of a larger plan to improve the overall watershed. Proposals that demonstrate cooperation within the watershed between different entities will receive more points.

If two organizations cooperate to submit two separate proposals that work in conjunction with one another, both proposals will receive more cooperation points. In order to do this, both organizations must identify the cooperating proposal on the proposal cover sheet and attach the cover sheet of the cooperating entity. The proposals may then be submitted together or separately.

Provide copies of letters/documentation from cooperating entity/entities within the project geographic area and from the local community stating their specific role in the development or implementation of the Watershed Coordinator proposal.

State of California - Department of C	Conservation	GRANT AGREE	EMENT NUMBER:
GRANT AGREEMENT DOC6 (revised 12/18)		FI\$Cal NUMBE	R:
This Grant Agreement is entered ("Grantee")	into by and between the Department of Conserv	ation ("Departm	nent") and
2. The Grant Agreement Term is:	From (Or upon execution of this Grant Agreement by both parties, whichever is later)	through	
3. The maximum amount of this Grant Agreement is:	\$		
Signing this Grant Agreement me and attachments which are part	ans that Grantee agrees to comply with the terms of the Grant Agreement:	and conditions o	of the following exhibits
Exhibit A, Scope of Work			Page(s)
Attachment 1: Project Location			Page(s)
Attachment 2: Authorized Signo	atory Form		Page(s)
Attachment 3: Work Plan			Page(s)
Attachment 4: Final Report			Page(s)
Exhibit B, Budget Detail and Reimbu			Page(s)
Attachment 5: Budget Detail W	orksheet		Page(s)
Attachment 6: Invoice			Page(s)
Exhibit C, General Terms and Condi			Page(s)
Exhibit D, Special Terms and Condition			Page(s)
Attachment 7: Invoice Dispute	Notification Template		Page(s)
Exhibit E, Award Letter			Page(s)
Exhibit F, Solicitation			Page(s)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Grant Agr	eement has been executed by the Parties hereto.		
	GRANTEE		
GRANTEE'S NAME			
BY (Authorized Signature)		D	DATE SIGNED
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON	N SIGNING		
ADDRESS			
	STATE OF CALIFORNIA		
Agency Name: Department of Conservation			
BY (Authorized Signature)			DATE SIGNED
PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON	1 SIGNING	<u> </u>	
ADDRESS			

Appendix C: Grant Agreement Template

Exhibit A: Scope of Work

2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program Background

The 2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program (Program) funds watershed coordinator positions to develop, update, and implement watershed improvement plans consistent with the recommendations of the Water Security, Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002 (Proposition 50) and related Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) developed by local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). Watershed coordinators will facilitate watershed-scale collaborations, promote integrated watershed management efforts, and support local implementation activities focusing on areas significantly impacted by SGMA implementation.

Funding for this Grant is available from Water Security, Clean Drinking Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002 (Proposition 50). The Budget Act of 2019 (AB 74, Ch. 23, Stat. 2019) appropriated \$1.5 million to the Department for this purpose.

2. The Project is Defined by the Application and Award Letter

The Department released the final 2020 Sustainable Groundwater Management Watershed Coordinator Grant Program Solicitation on June 15, 2020. In accordance with the Solicitation, Grantee applied for and the Department awarded a grant to fund the project described in the application, subject to any conditions contained within the Award Letter (Exhibit E). This will be referred to as the "Project" throughout this Agreement.

3. Authorized Signers

The Department Director or designee is authorized to sign this Grant Agreement and grant-related documents on behalf of the Department.

Grantee's Authorized Signatory or designee is authorized to sign this Grant Agreement and grant-related documents as shown in the Authorized Signatory Form (<u>Attachment 2</u>).

Grantee must keep Authorized Signatory Forms up to date. Within seven (7) working days of any change to the authorized signatory or to the delegated authorized signatory, Grantee shall notify the Department in writing of the change. The written notice shall be sent as an electronic mail (email) attachment to be filed with the Grant Agreement.

4. Project Representatives

The project representatives are the contact people for the Department and Grantee. The project representatives during the term of this Grant Agreement are:

Department

Name	Title	Phone Number	Email
TBD	Grant Manager*	TBD	TBD

^{*} Unless otherwise stated within this Grant Agreement, all correspondence and documents to the Department of Conservation will be sent to the Grant Manager as described in Document Submission (Exhibit A, Section 6).

Grantee

Name	Title	Phone Number	Email

Department and Grantee must keep the Project Representative(s) up to date. Any changes to the Project Representatives by either Grantee or Department shall be made by providing seven (7) working days advance written notice to the other party. The written notice shall be sent as an electronic mail (email) attachment to be filed with the Grant Agreement.

5. Grantee Responsibilities

Grantee is responsible for:

- A. Using grant funds only as intended for the Project.
- B. Completing work on time and within budget. This includes meeting all milestones and deliverables, described in the Work Plan (<u>Attachment 3</u>), the plans and specifications and in accordance with the Budget Detail Worksheet (<u>Attachment 5</u>), unless otherwise agreed to by all parties through the amendment process described in Exhibit B, Section 7.
- C. Submitting invoices for reimbursement using the Invoice (<u>Attachment 6</u>) template, including any supporting documents.
- D. Submitting a final report with the last invoice, using the Final Report template (Attachment 3).
- E. Complying with all terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement, including all incorporated documents.
- F. Complying with statutes, rules, regulations, permits applicable to this Grant Agreement and performance of the work.

G. Maintaining an accounting system that accurately reflects all fiscal transactions and provides accounting information, retaining all records and required documents as specified in Exhibit C, Section 4, and providing all required documents during an audit, as specified in Exhibit C, Section 5.

6. Document Submission

A. Electronic Mail

When this Grant Agreement requires Grantee to give reports, or other documents to the Department, Grantee must use email unless this Grant Agreement specifically requires that the document be sent by mail. All email must contain the Grant Agreement number and Grantee's name in the subject line.

B. Mail Service/Courier Service

Correspondence and documents submitted through mail, certified mail, or courier service must use the following address:

Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

Attn: [Grant Manager]

801 K Street, 14th Floor, MS 14-15

Sacramento, CA 95814

7. Reporting Requirements

When the Project is completed, Grantee must submit a Final Report (<u>Attachment 4</u>) with the last invoice. To complete and submit the Final Report:

- A. Submit the Final Report with the last invoice. If Grantee does not submit the Final Report with the last invoice, then the last invoice will be considered incomplete and returned following process specified in Exhibit D, Section 5.
- B. Use the Final Report Template, which is attached as Attachment 9.
- C. Make sure the Final Report is signed by the person authorized to sign on the most current Authorized Signatory Form (<u>Attachment 2</u>).
- D. Put enough detail in the Final Report to show that Grantee fulfilled the terms of the Grant Agreement and should be paid for completing the project.

Attachment 1: Project Location Maps

[insert maps here]

Attachment 2: Authorized Signatory Form

I hereby verify that I am an authorized Grantee representative and signatory and, as such, can sign and/or delegate authorization to sign and bind Grantee as it relates to the above-referenced Grant Agreement and grant related documents.

Title:	
Date:	
Title:	
Date:	
	Agreement
Title:	
Date:	
	Agreement
	Date: Title: Related Documents or Grantendments Reports Title:

Attachment 3: Work Plan

[Work plan submitted with the application, subject to any changes based on the award letter, will be inserted in the final grant agreement

Attachment 4: Final Report

Final Report	Date Submitted:
Grantee Name:	Grant Number:
Project Name:	

- 1. Provide a list of project accomplishments.
- 2. Briefly summarize the Project's results and outcomes, including how the goals and objectives were accomplished, findings or conclusions, and planned or potential future projects that may result from the Project. Include a list of other sources of funding that were secured, directly or indirectly, through this Project.
- 3. Describe and explain any differences between the planned results, as listed in the Work Plan (<u>Attachment 3</u>), and the actual results. Include a discussion of any problems, barriers, or issues that occurred during the Project, corrective actions taken, and the outcomes.
- 4. Explain any plans to continue funding for the Project, and/or to expand, modify, or replicate the Project.
- 5. Based on your experiences with this grant program, please provide feedback about how the Department can improve future grant programs.

I certify that this Final Report is accurate and that this project complies with the Agreement. I further certify that any expenditure discussed in this report is allowed under the Agreement and that all funds were expended for the purposes of this Project.

Name	Title:	
(type or print):		
Signature:	Date:	

Exhibit B: Budget Detail and Reimbursement Provisions

1. Reimbursement

- A. To receive Reimbursements of grant funds, Grantee must submit an invoice. Unless approved by controlling agencies, advance payments are not permitted under this Grant Agreement.
- B. Upon receipt and approval of an itemized invoice and required supporting documentation, the Department agrees to reimburse Grantee for actual expenditures for work performed, in accordance with the rates specified in the Budget Detail Worksheet (Attachment 5).
- C. All invoices and reports must be submitted within 45 days of the Project completion. Invoices received after that date will be paid only if the funding remains available. All applicable rush processing fees will be deducted from the invoice.
- D. The Department may withhold final reimbursement until all terms of the Grant Agreement have been satisfied.
- E. The Department intends to process invoices expeditiously so that they can be paid within forty-five (45) days upon receipt and approval of an invoice.
- F. For cost principles, see Exhibit B, Section 5.
- G. If at a later date advanced payments are determined to be allowable by the Department and its controlling agencies, advance payments will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis.
- H. Failure to comply with requirements may result in non-payment or delayed payment.

2. How to Submit Invoices

- A. Grant manager will instruct best manner to send invoices to the department.
- B. Send invoices regularly, to keep getting paid. Grantee shall submit invoices no more frequently than monthly, in arrears, to the Grant Manager.
- C. A request for reimbursement shall consist of:
 - i. The Invoice (<u>Attachment 6</u>) on official letterhead and signed by the Authorized Signatory, or authorized designee on file with the Department (<u>Exhibit A, Section 3</u>), certifying the expenditures are for actual expenses for the activities performed under this Grant Agreement.
 - ii. Each cost category and activities must correspond to a cost category and activities identified in the Budget Detail Worksheet (<u>Attachment 5</u>).
 - iii. Supporting documentation for reimbursement of funds.
- D. At any time, the Department may request hard copies of invoices, reports, supporting documentation, and evidence of progress.

3. Invoice Dispute

In the event of an invoice dispute, see Invoice Dispute Notification Template (<u>Attachment 7</u>).

4. Budget Contingency Clause

- A. If the Budget Act of the current year and/or any subsequent years covered under this Grant Agreement does not appropriate sufficient funds for the program, this Grant Agreement shall have no further force nor effect. In this event, the Department shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to Grantee or to furnish any other considerations under this Grant Agreement, and Grantee shall not be obligated to perform any provisions of this Grant Agreement.
- B. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for purposes of this program, the Department shall have the option to either cancel this Grant Agreement with no liability occurring to the Department or offer an amendment to reflect the reduced amount.

5. Cost Principles

- A. All costs to be reimbursed must be consistent with Section 2, Eligible Costs (pages 5-7).
- B. All costs to be reimbursed must be reasonable, as defined in Section 2, Eligible Costs (page 5).

6. Travel Reimbursement

Travel expenses directly related to the performance of this Grant Agreement will be subject to the State of California travel reimbursement rates in effect during the term of this Grant Agreement.

- A. The Department will only reimburse for actual expenditures incurred for in-state travel as specified in the Solicitation, Section 2, Eligible Costs.
- B. Grantee shall maintain, and submit upon request, detailed travel records and supporting documents (e.g., travel request and approval forms, expense claims, invoices, receipts for lodging and transportation) showing the date and purpose of the grant-related travel, destination, and, in the case of travel by automobile, the number of miles driven.
- C. Grantee shall ensure travel costs are included in the Budget Detail Worksheet (Attachment 5) and are tied to activities in the Work Plan (Attachment 3).
- D. Grantee and any person traveling pursuant to this Grant Agreement shall indemnify and hold harmless the Department and State of California for any liabilities resulting from such travel.

7. Budget Modifications

- A. Grantee must keep the Budget Detail Worksheet (Attachment 5) up to date.
- B. Changes up to twenty percent (20%) between activities shall be made by providing written notice with or before submission of an invoice. If submitted before the invoice, the written notice shall be sent as an electronic mail (email) attachment to be filed with the Grant Agreement.
- C. Changes of more than twenty percent (20%) between activities shall follow the amendment process, specified in <u>Exhibit B</u>, Section 8.

8. Amendments

- A. This section applies to any changes to this Grant Agreement, excluding the following:
 - i. Changes to the Authorized Signatory Form (<u>Attachment 2</u>). For changes to the Authorized Signatory Form see <u>Exhibit A, Section 3.</u>
 - ii. Changes to project representatives, see Exhibit A, Section 4.
 - iii. Changes to the Budget Detail Worksheet of up to twenty percent (20%) between activities, see Exhibit B, Section 7.
- B. Except as otherwise specified, Grantee must request and obtain prior written approval before any change (amendment) to this Grant Agreement is valid.
- C. Request for amendments must:
 - i. Be prepared, in writing, on official letterhead and signed by the Authorized Signatory or designee on file with the Department.
 - ii. Be submitted to the Grant Manager prior to when the amendment is needed.
 - iii. Include the Grant Agreement number, a detailed explanation of the proposed amendment, reason for the amendment, and the effect of not approving the request.
 - iv. Include a copy of the document(s) requested for amendment that shows the requested changes.
- D. The Grant Manager will respond in writing within fifteen (15) working days from receipt of request to approve or deny the request for amendment, including the reason for the decision.
- E. The Grant Manager will process amendments within thirty (30) days of the approval date. The amendment will not be in effect until both parties have signed the Grant Agreement amendment.

Attachment 5: Budget Detail Worksheet

[Budget detail worksheet submitted with the application, subject to any changes based on the award letter, will be inserted in the final grant agreement]

Attachment 6: Invoice

All invoices must itemize expenses consistent with the line items identified in the BUDGET DETAIL. All invoices itemize administrative costs.

Mail two copies of required invoice documents

To: Grant Manager

Department of Conservation Division of Land Resource Protection

801 K Street, M S 14-15

Sacramento, CA 95814

Date:	Invoice Number:	
Grantee Name:	Grant Number:	
Invoice Period	(Start Date)	(End Date)

Cost Category (Line Item)	Hourly Cost/Unit Rate	Number of Hours/Units	Total Costs	Total Budgeted	Remainder
Watershed coordinator					
Technical Support					
Travel (watershed coordinator activities)					
Administrative costs					
Other (specify)					
Total					

Description of Activities				
Please refer to specific actions in the Budget of Accomplishments, challenges, and anticipate tracking progress.				
CERTIFICATION : By my signature below, I certify that I have full authority to execute this reimbursement request on behalf of Grantee. I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that this invoice for reimbursement, and any accompanying supporting documents, are true and correct to the best of my knowledge, an all disbursements have been made for the purposes and conditions as outlined in the Grant Agreement.				
Print Name:	Print Title:			
Signature:		Date:		

Exhibit C: General Terms and Conditions

1. Approval

This Grant Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties. Grantee may not commence performance until such approval has been obtained.

2. Amendment

No change to this Grant Agreement shall be valid unless made in accordance with Exhibit A, Section 3 or 4, or Exhibit B, Section 7. No oral understanding or change not incorporated in this Grant Agreement is binding on any of the parties.

3. Assignment

This Grant Agreement is not assignable by Grantee, either in whole or in part, without the consent of the Department in the form of an amendment.

4. Records Retention

- A. Grantee shall establish an official file containing adequate documentation of all actions taken with respect to the Project, including copies of the Grant Agreement, changes, amendments, letters, email correspondence, financial records, and required reports for a minimum of four (4) years following the final payment of funds or until completion of any action and resolution of all issues which may arise as a result of an audit, whichever is later.
- B. Grantee shall adequately protect all records, physical and electronic, from loss, damage, or destruction during the four (4) year retention period.

5. Audit

- A. Grant funded projects are subject to audit by the State of California during the grant term and for up to three years following the termination of the grant agreement. Grantee agrees that the Department, Department of Finance, Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining to the performance of this Grant Agreement. The audit may consist of examining and auditing pertinent books, documents, papers, and records including financial transactions and supporting documents, general accounting systems, internal controls, management practices, policies, and procedures pertaining to the performance of this Grant Agreement.
- B. At any time, the Department, Department of Finance, Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative may request to review Grantee's records to ensure proper grant management. Grantee shall be given advance notice when the grant-funded Project is selected for an audit or review by the Department, Department of Finance, Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative. Grantee agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such records during normal business hours, excluding State of California holidays, and to allow interviews of any employees who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Grantee agrees to include a similar right of the Department to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract related to performance of this Grant Agreement in accordance with Government Code section 8546.7. Grantee shall comply with the above and be aware of the penalties for violations of fraud and

for obstruction of investigation as set forth in Public Contract Code section 10115.10.

6. Indemnification

Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of California, its officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any and all Grantees, partners, subcontractors, suppliers, laborers, and any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work services, materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of this Grant Agreement, and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation who may be injured or damaged by Grantee in the performance of this Grant Agreement.

7. Disputes

Grantee shall continue with the responsibilities under this Grant Agreement during any dispute.

8. Independent Grantee

Grantee, and the agents and employees of Grantee, in the performance of this Grant Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, employees, or agents of the Department.

9. Non-Discrimination Clause

During the performance of this Grant Agreement, Grantee and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, creed, age (over 40), mental disability, physical disability, sex, gender (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, and military and veteran status. Grantee and subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. Grantee and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Grant Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. Grantee and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other Grant Agreement.

Grantee shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this Grant Agreement.

10. Timeliness

Time is of the essence in this Grant Agreement. The Department and Grantee will work collaboratively to ensure this Grant Agreement is administered in a timely fashion.

11. Governing Law

This Grant Agreement is governed by and shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

12. Unenforceable Provision

If any provision of this Grant Agreement is unenforceable or held to be unenforceable, then the parties agree that all other provisions of this Grant Agreement have force and effect and shall not be affected thereby.

Exhibit D: Special Terms and Conditions

1. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

By signing this Grant Agreement, Grantee certifies that it shall comply fully with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations, and permits and shall secure any new permits required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project, and maintain all presently required permits. Grantee shall ensure that any applicable requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act and Prevailing Wage are met in order to carry out the terms of this Grant Agreement.

2. Subcontractors

The Department's contractual relationship is with Grantee, and not any of its subcontractors. Grantee is entitled to make use of its own staff and subcontractors, as identified in the Budget Detail Worksheet (<u>Attachment 5</u>), and will comply with its own competitive bidding and sole sourcing requirements for subcontracts that arise out of or in connection with this Grant Agreement. Grantee shall manage, monitor, and accept responsibility for the performance of its own staff and subcontractors, and will conduct Project activities and services consistent with professional standards for the industry and type of work being performed under this Grant Agreement.

Nothing contained in this Grant Agreement or otherwise, shall create any contractual relation between the Department and any subcontractors, and no subcontract shall relieve Grantee of its responsibilities and obligations hereunder. Grantee agrees to be as fully responsible to the Department for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by Grantee. Grantee's obligation to pay its subcontractors is an independent obligation from the Department's obligation to make reimbursements to Grantee. As a result, the Department shall have no obligation to pay or to enforce the reimbursement of any moneys to any subcontractor.

3. No Third-Party Beneficiaries

This Grant Agreement is not intended for the benefit of any person or entity other than the parties, and no one other than the parties themselves may enforce any of the rights or obligations created by this Grant Agreement.

4. Dispute Resolution

A. Invoice Disputes

- i. In the event of an invoice dispute, the Grant Manager will notify Grantee by phone and follow up in writing using the Invoice Dispute Notification Template (Attachment 7) within ten (10) working days of receipt of the disputed invoice.
- ii. During the dispute, both parties shall deal in good faith to resolve the dispute. Grantee shall continue to meet its responsibilities and obligations under the terms of this Grant Agreement.
- iii. If Grantee contests the decision made by the Grant Manager, Grantee shall submit a written "Notice of Dispute" on official letterhead, according to Subsection C below.

B. General Disputes

i. In the event of a dispute unrelated to the dispute of an invoice, Grantee shall first attempt to resolve the dispute with the Grant Manager.

- ii. Both parties shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve the dispute informally.
- iii. Grantee shall continue to meet its responsibilities and obligations under the terms of this Grant Agreement during a dispute.
- iv. If Grantee contests the decision made by the Grant Manager, Grantee shall submit a written "Notice of Dispute" on official letterhead, according to Subsection C below.

C. Contesting a Dispute Decision

- i. If Grantee contests a decision made by the Grant Manager, Grantee may submit a written "Notice of Dispute" on official letterhead. The "Notice of Dispute" shall include:
 - The Grant Agreement number
 - A complete description of the basis for the dispute
 - Legal authority or pertinent facts, supporting arguments and documentation
 - Action requested for resolution

The "Notice of Dispute" shall be sent to:

Department of Conservation

Division of Land Resource Protection

Attn: Division Director

801 K Street, 14th Floor, MS 14-15

Sacramento, CA 95814

- ii. Within 30 days after receipt of the "Notice of Dispute," the Division Director shall review the dispute and submit a written decision to Grantee, which shall include:
 - The decision made
 - An explanation for the decision
 - Whether the decision shall be conclusive and binding or can be appealed and the steps to take to appeal the decision

5. Termination

- A. Completion of Project. This Grant Agreement shall terminate upon completion of the Project and payment of the last invoice.
- B. Early Termination. Either Party may terminate this Grant Agreement upon thirty (30) days advance written notice by certified mail to the other Party. The notice shall specify the reason for early termination and may permit Grantee or Department to rectify any deficiency(ies) prior to the early termination date.

6. Waiver of Rights

A. Grantee waives any and all rights to any type of express or implied indemnity or right of contribution from the Department, its officers, agents, or employees for any liability arising from, growing out of, or in any way connected with this Grant Agreement.

- B. Grantee waives all claims and recourses against the Department, including the right to contribution for loss or damage to persons or property arising from, growing out of, or in any way connected with or incident to this Grant Agreement, except claims arising from the gross negligence of the Department, its officers, agents, and employees.
- C. None of the provisions of this Grant Agreement shall be deemed waived unless expressly waived in writing.

7. Insurance Requirements

- A. Grantee that is a governmental organization may provide evidence of self-insurance to satisfy this requirement.
- B. If Grantee is not a governmental organization or is unable to provide evidence of self-insurance, then it shall obtain and keep in force for the term of this Agreement the following insurance policies that cover any acts or omissions of Grantee, its subcontractors, or its employees engaged in the provision of service specified in this Agreement:
 - i. Workers' Compensation Insurance in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 in accordance with the statutory requirement of the State of California (California Labor Code § 3700 et seq.).
 - ii. Commercial general liability insurance in an amount of not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage combined.
 - iii. Motor vehicle liability insurance in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage combined. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of any motor vehicle including owned or hired, and non-owned motor vehicles.
- C. The State of California, its officers, agents, and employees are included as additional insured, but only with respect to work performed for the State of California under this Grant Agreement. The additional insured endorsement must accompany the certificate of insurance.
- D. Grantee shall submit proof of insurance documents referencing this Grant Agreement number to the Department electronically within thirty (30) days of signing this Grant Agreement.
- E. Grantee shall notify Department in writing within five (5) working days of any cancellation, non-renewal, or material change that affects required insurance coverage.
- F. Grantee shall submit proof of new or updated policy based on insurance requirements within thirty (30) days of policy cancellation or substantial policy change. Failure to provide proof of insurance may result in termination of this Grant Agreement.

8. Stop Work

If it is determined, at the sole discretion of the Department, that Grantee is not meeting the terms and conditions of this Grant Agreement, immediately upon receiving a written notice through certified mail from the Department to stop work, Grantee shall cease all work under this Grant Agreement. The Department has the sole discretion to determine that Grantee meets the terms and conditions after a stop work order, and

to send through certified mail a written notice to Grantee to resume work under this Grant Agreement.

9. Publicity

Grantee agrees that it will acknowledge the Department's support whenever activities or projects funded or developed, in whole or in part, by this Grant Agreement are publicized in any news media, brochures, articles, seminars, websites, or other type of promotional material.

Media: Grantee is required to identify a point of contact for all press inquiries and communications needs related to the Project and provide the name, phone number, and email address of this individual to the Department. All press releases must be approved by the Department prior to distribution, and the Department must be alerted and invited to participate in all press conferences related to the grant.

Social Media: Grantee is encouraged to use social media to inform and share with the public activities under this Grant Agreement. Furthermore, the Department should be tagged on all posts related to activities under this Grant Agreement.

10. Drug-Free Workplace Certification

In signing this Grant Agreement, Grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions:

- A. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations.
- B. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:
 - i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
 - ii. The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
 - iii. Any available counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs.
- iv. Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- C. Every employee who works on this Grant Agreement will:
 - i. Receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement.
 - ii. Agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment on this Grant Agreement.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under this Grant Agreement or termination of this Grant Agreement or both, and Grantee may be ineligible for award of any future State of California agreements if the Department determines that any of the following has occurred: Grantee has made false certification, or violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.).

11. Americans with Disabilities Act

Grantee assures the Department that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.).

12. Air/Water Pollution Violation Certification

Under State of California laws, Grantee shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the California Air Resources Board or

an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution.

13. Equipment Purchase

- A. Grantee must use all equipment acquired only to implement the Project.
- B. During the Project, equipment must be dedicated to the described use in the same proportion and scope as was in the Grant Agreement, unless the Department agrees otherwise in writing. On completion or early termination of the Grant Agreement, the Department will either require that the equipment be returned or authorize the continued use of such equipment at the Project Area. In making that determination, the Department will consider the useful life of the equipment, and Grantee may be required to refund the Department for the fair market value of equipment that continues to have a usable life, but is no longer required for project implementation.
- C. All equipment and machinery acquired is subject to call for emergency use in fire, storm, flood, or other disaster by a federal or state agency, county, city, or district in the state.
- D. Grantee assumes all risk including cost for maintenance, repair, loss, destruction and damage to all equipment until disposition of equipment. The Department may require Grantee to repair or replace any damaged, lost, or stolen equipment to the satisfaction of the Department with no expense to the State. In the event of theft, a report must be filed immediately with the California Highway Patrol (State Administrative Manual § 8643 [Lost, Stolen, or Destroyed Property]).
- E. Grantee must maintain an inventory record for each piece of non-expendable equipment purchased or built with funds provided under this Grant Agreement.

The inventory record should include:

- i. Grant Number
- ii. Description of Equipment
- iii. Manufacturer Name
- iv. Model (if applicable)
- v. Model Year
- vi. Serial Number, License Number or Vehicle Identification Number
- vii. Date Purchased
- viii. Purchase Order Number
- ix. Original Cost

Non-expendable equipment so inventoried are equipment items that have a normal life expectancy of one year or more with an approximate unit price of \$5,000 or more. In addition, items of equipment that are prone to theft, loss, and misuse and may contain sensitive data costing less than \$5,000 must be inventoried.

The Equipment Inventory Record must be updated annually and upon request.

Attachment 7: Invoice Dispute Notification Template

			INVOICE DATE	
GRANTEE			INVOICE NUMBER	
ADDRESS			INVOICE AMOUNT	
			\$	
			DATE INVOICE RECEIVED	
			GRANT AGREEMENT NUMBER	
The invoic	e referenced above is disputed for the following reason	s:		
Red	quest reimbursement for expenses not in the Budget Deta	ail	Invoiced for indirect cost reimbu	ırsement
Invo	piced for incidental costs or travel costs outside of CA		Work performed prior to the Gra	ant start or end date
Inst	ufficient evidence of progress made or task completion		Invoice submitted without using	; required templates
Inst	ufficient supporting document for reimbursement		Progress Report or Final Repor	rt not included with invoice
Invo	pice not submitted by 5:00 p.m. on the required due date		Request reimbursement throug	gh another funding source
Oth	er not listed above:			
Comm	nents:			
THIS NOTI	FICATION IS A FOLLOW UP TO A PHONE CONVERSATION	I WIT	H THE GRANTEE OR DESIGNEE V	WHOSE NAME APPEARS
NAME			DATE OF CONVERSATION	
IF YOU HAV	VE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS DISPUTE, CONTAC	T:		
NAME			TELEPHONE NUMBER (include Area	(Code)
			07175 05 01150	THE HOS ON Y
DET	TURN A COPY OF THIS NOTIFICATOIN WITH THE		STATE OF CALIFOR DATE DISPUTE RESOLVED	INITIALS
	RRECTED INVOICE TO:		DATE DISPUTE RESOLVED	INITIALS
			RESOLUTION	

Exhibit E: Award Letter

[Insert award letter here.]

State of California
Department of Conservation
SGMA Watershed Coordinator Grant

[Name of Grantee] 3020-XXX Grant Agreement

Exhibit F: Solicitation

[Insert Solicitation here.]

Appendix D: List of SGMA High and Medium Priority Basins

Numb	Subb	Basin_Su_1	Priority
2-002	2-002.01	NAPA-SONOMA VALLEY - NAPA VALLEY	High
2-002	2-002.02	NAPA-SONOMA VALLEY - SONOMA VALLEY	High
2-009	2-009.02	SANTA CLARA VALLEY - SANTA CLARA	High
3-001	3-001	SANTA CRUZ MID-COUNTY	High
3-002	3-002.01	CORRALITOS - PAJARO VALLEY	High
3-003	3-003.01	GILROY-HOLLISTER VALLEY - LLAGAS AREA	High
3-004	3-004.01	SALINAS VALLEY - 180/400 FOOT AQUIFER	High
3-004	3-004.02	SALINAS VALLEY - EAST SIDE AQUIFER	High
3-004	3-004.09	SALINAS VALLEY - LANGLEY AREA	High
3-004	3-004.06	SALINAS VALLEY - PASO ROBLES AREA	High
3-009	3-009	SAN LUIS OBISPO VALLEY	High
3-013	3-013	CUYAMA VALLEY	High
3-018	3-018	CARPINTERIA	High
4-002	4-002	OJAI VALLEY	High
4-004	4-004.05	SANTA CLARA RIVER VALLEY - FILLMORE	High
4-004	4-004.03	SANTA CLARA RIVER VALLEY - MOUND	High
4-004	4-004.02	SANTA CLARA RIVER VALLEY - OXNARD	High
4-004	4-004.06	SANTA CLARA RIVER VALLEY - PIRU	High
4-004	4-004.07	SANTA CLARA RIVER VALLEY - SANTA CLARA RIVER VALLEY EAST	High
4-006	4-006	PLEASANT VALLEY	High
4-008	4-008	LAS POSAS VALLEY	High
5-021	5-021.54	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - ANTELOPE	High
5-021	5-021.52	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - COLUSA	High
5-021	5-021.51	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - CORNING	High
5-021	5-021.64	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - NORTH AMERICAN	High
5-021	5-021.65	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - SOUTH AMERICAN	High
5-021	5-021.61	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - SOUTH YUBA	High
5-021	5-021.57	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - VINA	High
5-021	5-021.67	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - YOLO	High
5-022	5-022.05	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - CHOWCHILLA	High
5-022	5-022.07	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - DELTA-MENDOTA	High
5-022	5-022.01	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - EASTERN SAN JOAQUIN	High
5-022	5-022.11	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - KAWEAH	High
5-022	5-022.14	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - KERN COUNTY	High
5-022	5-022.08	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - KINGS	High
5-022	5-022.06	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - MADERA	High

Numb	Subb	Basin_Su_1	Priority
5-022	5-022.04	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - MERCED	High
5-022	5-022.02	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - MODESTO	High
5-022	5-022.12	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - TULARE LAKE	High
5-022	5-022.13	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - TULE	High
5-022	5-022.03	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - TURLOCK	High
5-022	5-022.09	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - WESTSIDE	High
6-054	6-054	INDIAN WELLS VALLEY	High
7-024	7-024.01	BORREGO VALLEY - BORREGO SPRINGS	High
8-002	8-002.07	UPPER SANTA ANA VALLEY - YUCAIPA	High
8-005	8-005	SAN JACINTO	High
1-002	1-002.01	KLAMATH RIVER VALLEY - TULELAKE	Medium
1-003	1-003	BUTTE VALLEY	Medium
1-004	1-004	SHASTA VALLEY	Medium
1-005	1-005	SCOTT RIVER VALLEY	Medium
1-010	1-010	EEL RIVER VALLEY	Medium
1-052	1-052	UKIAH VALLEY	Medium
1-055	1-055.01	SANTA ROSA VALLEY - SANTA ROSA PLAIN	Medium
2-001	2-001	PETALUMA VALLEY	Medium
2-009	2-009.04	SANTA CLARA VALLEY - EAST BAY PLAIN	Medium
2-009	2-009.01	SANTA CLARA VALLEY - NILES CONE	Medium
2-010	2-010	LIVERMORE VALLEY Medium	Medium
3-003	3-003.05	GILROY-HOLLISTER VALLEY - NORTH SAN BENITO	Medium
3-004	3-004.04	SALINAS VALLEY - FOREBAY AQUIFER	Medium
3-004	3-004.10	SALINAS VALLEY - MONTEREY	Medium
3-004	3-004.05	SALINAS VALLEY - UPPER VALLEY AQUIFER	Medium
3-007	3-007	CARMEL VALLEY	Medium
3-014	3-014	SAN ANTONIO CREEK VALLEY	Medium
3-015	3-015	SANTA YNEZ RIVER VALLEY	Medium
3-027	3-027	SANTA MARGARITA	Medium
3-049	3-049	MONTECITO	Medium
4-003	4-003.01	VENTURA RIVER VALLEY - UPPER VENTURA RIVER	Medium
4-011	4-011.01	COASTAL PLAIN OF LOS ANGELES - SANTA MONICA	Medium
5-004	5-004	BIG VALLEY	Medium
5-006	5-006.03	redding area - anderson	Medium
5-006	5-006.04	REDDING AREA - ENTERPRISE	Medium
5-012	5-012.01	SIERRA VALLEY - SIERRA VALLEY	Medium
5-015	5-015	BIG VALLEY	Medium
5-021	5-021.70	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - BUTTE	Medium
5-021	5-021.56	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - LOS MOLINOS	Medium

Numb	Subb	Basin_Su_1	Priority
5-021	5-021.60	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - NORTH YUBA	Medium
5-021	5-021.50	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - RED BLUFF	Medium
5-021	5-021.66	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - SOLANO	Medium
5-021	5-021.62	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - SUTTER	Medium
5-021	5-021.69	SACRAMENTO VALLEY - WYANDOTTE CREEK	Medium
5-022	5-022.16	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - COSUMNES	Medium
5-022	5-022.19	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - EAST CONTRA COSTA	Medium
5-022	5-022.10	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - PLEASANT VALLEY	Medium
5-022	5-022.15	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - TRACY	Medium
5-022	5-022.18	SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY - WHITE WOLF	Medium
6-005	6-005.01	TAHOE VALLEY - TAHOE SOUTH	Medium
7-021	7-021.01	COACHELLA VALLEY - INDIO	Medium
7-021	7-021.02	COACHELLA VALLEY - MISSION CREEK	Medium
7-021	7-021.04	COACHELLA VALLEY - SAN GORGONIO PASS	Medium
8-001	8-001	COASTAL PLAIN OF ORANGE COUNTY	Medium
8-002	8-002.09	UPPER SANTA ANA VALLEY - TEMESCAL	Medium
8-004	8-004.01	ELSINORE - ELSINORE VALLEY	Medium
9-007	9-007.01	SAN LUIS REY VALLEY - UPPER SAN LUIS REY VALLEY	Medium
9-010	9-010	SAN PASQUAL VALLEY	Medium

